ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 11, 2010
3:07 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel |l er, Co-Chair
Representative Tamm e W/ son, Vice Chair
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 284

"An Act requiring the Departnment of Health and Social Services
to accept federal prescription drug benefits or to provide
conpar abl e benefits for residents of the Al aska Pioneers' Hone."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 260

"An Act relating to preventive care and disease nmanagenent
services for nedical assistance recipients; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 12
Proclaimng Septenber 9, 2010, as Fetal Al cohol Spectrum
Di sorders Awareness Day.

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 101
"An Act relating to questionnaires and surveys admnistered in
the public schools.™

- MOVED HSC SB 101(HSS) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 11, 2010



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 284
SHORT TI TLE: PI ONEERS HOMVE RX DRUG BENEFI T
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) DAHLSTROM GARA, HERRON

01/ 15/ 10 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 15/ 10
01/ 19/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H) HSS, STA

01/ 21/ 10 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
01/ 21/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 10 (H) HSS, STA

03/ 09/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 09/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 09/ 10 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 11/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 260
SHORT TI TLE: MeEDI CAl D: PREVENTI VE CARE/ DI SEASE MGT.
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

01/ 08/ 10 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/8/10

01/19/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H HSS, FIN

02/ 11/ 10 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 11/ 10 (H <Bill Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 04/ 10 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 04/ 10 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/11/10 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SCR 12

SHORT TITLE: FETAL ALCOHOL SPECTRUM DI SORDERS DAY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

01/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 19/ 10 (S) HSS

02/ 08/ 10 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 08/ 10 (S) Moved SCR 12 Qut of Committee

02/ 08/ 10 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

02/ 10/ 10 (S) HSS RPT 5DP

02/ 10/ 10 (S) DP: DAVIS, THOWVAS, ELLIS, PASKVAN,
DYSON

02/ 12/ 10 (S) BEFORE THE SENATE ON FI NAL PASSAGE

02/ 12/ 10 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 12/ 10 (S) VERSI ON:  SCR 12

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 11, 2010



02/ 15/ 10
02/ 15/ 10
03/ 04/ 10
03/ 04/ 10
03/ 11/ 10

BILL: SB 101

EEEee

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
HSS

HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: STUDENT QUESTI ONNAI RES AND SURVEYS

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 06/ 09
02/ 06/ 09
03/ 11/ 09
03/ 11/ 09
03/ 11/ 09
03/ 18/ 09
03/ 18/ 09
03/ 18/ 09
03/ 18/ 09
03/ 18/ 09
03/ 18/ 09
03/ 25/ 09
03/ 25/ 09
03/ 25/ 09
03/ 27/ 09
03/ 27/ 09
03/ 27/ 09
03/ 30/ 09
03/ 30/ 09
03/ 30/ 09
03/ 30/ 09
03/ 30/ 09
04/ 16/ 09
04/ 16/ 09
04/ 16/ 09
04/ 16/ 09
02/ 02/ 10
02/ 02/ 10
02/ 11/ 10
02/ 11/ 10
02/ 11/ 10
03/ 11/ 10

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

EEEEE e

W TNESS REG STER

RI C DAVI DGE, Presi dent

SENATOR(s) DAVI S

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
EDC, HSS

EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 211
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( EDC)

EDC RPT 1DP 2NR

DP: DAVI S

NR: OLSON, HUGE NS

EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 211
Moved SB 101 CQut of Commttee
M NUTE( EDC)

HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS AT 1:15 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved SB 101 CQut of Committee
M NUTE( HSS)

HSS RPT 3DP

DP: DAVI S, THOVAS, PASKVAN
HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved Qut of Conmittee 3/27/09
M NUTE( HSS)

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:. SB 101

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HSS, FIN

HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Schedul ed But Not Heard

HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

Vi et nam Vet erans of Anerica

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE

- 3- March 11,

2010



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 284.

JI' M POUND, St af f

to Representative Ws Keller

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: I ntroduced the bill on behalf of
Representative Wes Keller, prime sponsor of HB 260.

Bl LL STREUER, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Director's Ofice

Di vision of Health Care Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 260.

WARREN TODD, Executive Director

I nternational D sease Managenent Alliance

Fl em ngt on, New Jersey

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 260.

SHELLEY HUGHES

Governnent Affairs Director

Al aska Primary Care Associ ation (APCA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 260.

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SCR 12 as the prinme sponsor of
t he resol ution.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions, as the
prime sponsor of the bill.

TOM OBERMEYER, St af f

to Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on SB 101,
on behalf of the prime sponsor of the bill, Senator Bettye
Davi s.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 11, 2010



RYAN KAUFFMAN
Sitka, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of SB 101.

JI' M M NNERY, President

Al aska Fam |y Counci

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in opposition to SB 101.

EM LY NENON, Al aska Governnent Rel ations Director

Ameri can Cancer Society Cancer Action Network (ACS CAN)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 101.

MARY FRANCI S, Executive Director

Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of SB 101.

PAULA EASLEY, Trustee

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support for SB 101.

ANNI E DOUGHERTY, Teacher
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of SB 101.

MONI CA GRGSS, Doct or
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of SB 101.

PATTY ONEN, State YRBS Survey Coordi nat or

Di vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of SB 101.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CO CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 07 p. m
Representatives Keller, Herron, G ssna, Seaton, and Lynn were
present at the call to order. Representatives Holnmes and T.
Wl son arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 11, 2010



HB 284- Pl ONEERS HOVE RX DRUG BENEFI T

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the first order of business would
be SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 284, "An Act requiring
the Department of Health and Social Services to accept federa
prescription drug benefits or to provide conparable benefits for
residents of the Al aska Pioneers' Hone, including residents
eligible for discount or free benefits from the United States
Department of Veterans Affairs or the Indian Health Service of
the United States Departnent of Health and Human Services."

3:07:55 PM

RIC DAVIDGE, President, Vietnam Veterans of America, expressed
his delight with HB 284 and offered to answer any questi ons.

3:08:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there were still any concerns.
3:08: 52 PM

MR. DAVIDGE replied that the problens had been resolved and he
t hanked the conm ssioner of Departnent of Health and Social
Servi ces. He expressed his hope that the bill would pass so
that veterans would no | onger have to pay at the Pioneers' Hone,
for prescriptions that were given to them at no charge fromthe
Vet erans Admi nistration (VA).

[ HB 284 was hel d over. ]

HB 260- MEDI CAl D. PREVENTI VE CARE/ DI SEASE MGT.

3:09:51 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 260, "An Act relating to preventive care and
di sease managenent services for nedical assistance recipients;
and providing for an effective date."

3:11: 14 PM
JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Wes Keller, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, introduced HB 260 and said "health care by way of

prevention would save the state noney in the l|long run. By
detecting an acute disease early in the process, the disease can

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 11, 2010



either be stopped or possibly reversed.” He stated that the
preventative care costs could save noney wthout cutting
servi ces. He explained that this would apply to Mdicaid
reci pi ents.

3:12: 54 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if the state would pay for this
or was it in addition to Mudicaid.

MR. POUND replied that it was a part of Medicaid but that the
state would pay for the preventative aspect. He all owed that
there would be an increase in upfront costs, but that early
prevention and early detection would balance the long term
costs.

3:13:46 PM
REPRESENTATI VE T. W LSON asked what the cost woul d be.
3:14: 17 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER shared that the bill was not yet in its fina
format.

3:14: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that the preventative
care was 100 percent state funded for Medicaid recipients.

MR. POUND agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed to page 2, line 11, and read from
subsection (d): "The departnent shall evaluate the projected
and actual savings.” and he asked if the referenced annual
report would be on the savings and not on the cost.

MR. POUND agr eed.

3:15: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA reported reading that other states had
wai vers for preventative work, and expressed her delight. She

said "this is pioneering."

3:16:13 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 11, 2010



CO CHAI R KELLER noved to adopt the proposed Conmittee Substitute
(CS) for HB 260, Version 26-LS1128\R, M schel, 2/4/10 as the
wor ki ng docunent. Seeing no objection, it was so ordered.
3:16:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked if the changes had been expl ai ned.
3:17:11 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON replied that testinony would be taken first.
3:17:48 PM

Bl LL STREUER, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Director's Ofice, D vision
of Health Care Services, Departnent of Health and Soci al

Services, said that Medicaid expenses would continue to rise and
he announced that there needed to be "a better, snmarter way to

do things." He stated his mantra: "the right care, the right
time, the right place, for the right people, at the right
price." He offered a basic primer to activities that would fit
into this bill.

3:19: 04 PM

MR. STREUER conpared prograns for preventive care: t he medi ca
home program all inclusive care for the elderly (PACE)

expanded coverage; and, pricing and rate strategies. He stated
that he would only speak about the first two prograns. The

first program the nedical hone, was a mnanaged care program
whi ch included: physician directed nedical practices; a whole
person orientation, focusing entirely on the person and their
particular health conditions, needs, and wants; integrated and

coordinated care; quality and safety; and enhanced access. He
shared that the nedical home program had been around since 1967.
He estimated that it would save $67 billion each year. |In 2007

the principles of the patient centered nedical hone were
rel eased: a personal physician, with an ongoing relationship
with the individual; physician directed medical practices for
the team responsible for care; and whole person orientation, to
include all the patient's health care needs. He described this
gateway for an individual to receive care to include quality and
safety, care planning, evi dence based nedicine, clinical
deci sion support, and perfornmance neasurenent. He spoke about
open schedul i ng, which included expanded hours and new
comuni cation techniques, on-line and blackberry to blackberry.
He stated that the paynment needed to be appropriate to the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 11, 2010



providers. He shared that the Centers for Disease Control (CDC)
had concluded that continuous enrollnment of children in nedica
homes resulted in higher vaccination rates, and that nedical

homes provided better access, inproved comrunication, better
satisfaction, reduced duplicate procedures, and |ower nedical
errors. He stated criticism of nedical honmes to include: a

potential shifting of financial and other resources with adverse
affects on sectors of the health care system access to vision
care may be restricted; and careful consideration was needed for
the role of non-physician providers. He opined that the nedica
honme nodel needed to take into account all the health care needs
of the individual. He opined that the startup costs would be
mnimal and could be acconplished with existing staff. He
reported the necessity of a project coordinator, and that a
pilot project wth the Indian Health Services should be
initiated no later than January 1, 2011

3:24: 40 PM

MR. STREUER detailed the Program of All Inclusive Care for the
Elderly (PACE), and stated that it was provided by non-profit or
public entities. He listed the requirenents to include:
regulation by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
(CVM5), a governing board, a conplete service package, a defined
service area, safeguards against conflict of interest, and
participants nmust be at |east 55 years of age with a need for
nursing facility |evel of care. He expressed that all Medicaid
and Medicare services plus 16 additional services had to be
provi ded.

3:26:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked if the PACE program was structured
for rural Al aska.

3:27:30 PM

MR. STREUER replied that the PACE program was an urban service
nodel .

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if this was a new program
MR. STREUER replied that it was a new programin Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE T. W LSON asked what the program woul d cost.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 11, 2010



MR. STREUER opined that there would not be an increase in costs
over the currently provided services.

3:28:32 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked if there was a pilot program for the
medi cal hone nodel

3:29:13 PM

MR. STREUER expressed a desire to develop a program with the
comunity health centers.

CO CHAIR KELLER asked about a tineline for the PACE program and
he offered any hel p necessary fromthe commttee.

MR. STREUER offered his belief that contacts with CV5 would
begin shortly to initiate the pilot program

3:30: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the wait |I|ist for Medicaid
wai vers woul d affect the program

MR. STREUER replied that the wait list was for individuals, and
that this was a different waiver request.

3:31:41 PM

WARREN TODD, Executi ve Director, I nt ernati onal Di sease
Managenent Al liance, spoke about his background.

3:34:35 PM

MR TODD said that there was a wealth of experience from the
Lower 48 for Alaska to draw on, though it was difficult to
deci pher. He expressed the difficulty for nmeasuring perfornmance
of the prograns. He stated that the costs of the prograns have
been too high as they have been delivered through for-profit

or gani zat i ons. He reflected that nmanagenent of disease
prevention and wellness prograns had devoted attention to the
current problenms of the elderly. He opined that disease

managemnment prograns had a greater chance to denonstrate econonic
savings in the short term

3:37:50 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 11, 2010



MR. TODD shared that the disease managenent industry would soon
expand into prevention and wellness prograns. He expressed
concern for the core issue that chronic disease was viewed as a
nmedi cal problem although it was a social problem and could not
be solved in the nmedical infrastructure. He expressed his
desire for newy designed state prograns to address the socia
i ssues. He recommended that it was necessary to design nedical
social, and economc prograns for "the very, very specific and
uni que needs of your popul ations throughout your state" in order
for there to be any benefit fromthe prograns.

3:40: 50 PM

MR TODD, in response to Representative Ci ssna, said that
obesity was a gl obal epidemc.

3:42: 45 PM

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA opined that these prograns required
creativity.

MR. TODD agr eed.
3:43: 44 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if these PACE nanagenent hone
prograns had been offered by the private sector.

MR TODD hesitantly said yes, and referred to the Medicare
program to inplement the MAIS pilot prograns for the elderly,
whi ch were discontinued. He proposed that it was nost i nportant
to have an understandi ng of why these fail ed.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if any there were any successfu
privately run prograns.

MR TODD said that 2 or 3 of the pilot prograns generated
results which exceeded expectations, a net 5 percent savings.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked for M. Todd to forward a |ist of
t hese prograns.

3:46: 42 PM

SHELLEY HUGHES, Governnent Affairs Director, Alaska Primary Care
Association (APCA), declared this to be the best bill in the
bui | di ng. She explained that the APCA nmission was to pronote

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 11, 2010



health care access to all Al askans, with a focus of support to
primary care and safety net providers for underserved and |ow
i ncome popul ations. She detailed that APCA was the regular
source of primary care for 23 percent of the Medicaid
popul ation. She pointed out that APCA represented the community
health centers which she determ ned would becone the patient
centered healthcare honme nodels, and noted that the patient
woul d be personally involved with their own care. She stated
that the community health centers were non-profits in the
private sector, and that APCA would partner with the state as a
sol uti on. She relayed that data from other states indicated a
10 -33 percent savings when Medicaid patients use a health
center as the regular source for prinmary care. She opined that
al t hough the savings may not be that high for Al aska, even a 3-5
percent savings on the 2029 projected Medicaid budget of $3.5

billion would be mllions of dollars. She stated that this was
"a very good bill." She pointed to page 2, and stated support
for an annual report as accountability was an inportant aspect
of the bill. She enphasized the inportance of disease

managenent and the cost savings generated by prevention.

3:51: 34 PM

CO-CHAIR KELLER said that this was "an idea whose tine has
cone." He sunmarized that PACE, nedical hone, and disease
managenment were ways to inprove the quality of |ife and save
noney.

3:52:59 PM

[ HB 260 was hel d over. ]

SCR 12- FETAL ALCOHOL SPECTRUM DI SORDERS DAY

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the next order of business would
be SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 12, Proclaimng Septenber 9,
2010, as Fetal Al cohol Spectrum Di sorders Awareness Day.

3:53: 39 PM

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, Alaska State Legislature, explained that
SCR 12 proclaimed Septenber 9, 2010, as Fetal Alcohol Spectrum
Di sorder Day (FASD). He shared that FASD day was observed
internationally. He pointed out that Alaska had the highest
rate of FASD in the United States. He noted that FASD was
caused by prenatal exposure to alcohol, and could "result in
permanent brain damage, birth defects, learning disabilities,

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 11, 2010



behavi oral problens, and nost tragically, the loss of individual

potential." He directed attention to the mllions of dollars
spent for lifetinme nedical and residential treatnment costs by
the state. He expressed frustration that this was totally
prevent abl e. He stated that SCR 12 was an effort to bring

attention and awareness to the problem and the devastating
effects on the children.

3:55:40 PM

CO CHAIR HERRON appl auded Senat or Meyer  for mai nt ai ni ng
awar eness of FASD. He referred to the earlier testinonies by
parents of FASD children and directed attention to Al askan
busi nesses and institutions which disregarded FASD.

3:56: 56 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER noved to report SCR 12 out of comrittee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendati ons. There being no objection, SCR 12
was forwarded from the House Health and Social Services Standing
Comm ttee.

SB 101- STUDENT QUESTI ONNAI RES AND SURVEYS

3:57:29 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the final order of business would
be SENATE BILL NO 101, "An Act relating to questionnaires and
surveys adm nistered in the public schools.”

3:57: 59 PM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, Alaska State Legislature, offered to
present the bullet points of the bill.

3:58: 59 PM

TOM OBERMEYER, Staff to Senator Bettye Davis, Alaska State
Legi slature, explained that SB 101 strengthens current parenta

notification provisions on the Youth R sk Behavior Survey (YRBS)
as it allows for passive parental consent to student
partici pation in t he YRBS, ensures two  week advance
notification, and allows parents to choose not to participate.

He explained that the YRBS was a voluntary, anonynous, school

based survey of high school students, developed by the Centers
for Disease Control (CDC), and adm nistered every two years. He
stated that current law required a signed permssion slip from

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 11, 2010



the parents, which hindered the data collection, as many of the
permssion slips were not returned. He acknow edged the
i nportance of parental support and engagenent, and the need for
parents to be kept informed and involved. He stated that SB 101
bal anced the parental need for information with the state's
interest to protect children from high risk behavior. He shared
that the Anchorage School District had barely net the necessary
m ni mum participation for the 2009 YRSB survey, and that SB 101
woul d endeavor to change this.

4:02:10 PM

SENATOR DAVI S asked if the commttee would |ike a synopsis of SB
101.

4:02: 25 PM

COCHAIR HERRON replied that he would Ilisten to public
t esti nony.

4:02:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if there was a |oss of federal noney
if there was not a mnimumreturn of surveys.

MR OBERMEYER replied that there might be a |oss of noney for
non- partici pation.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked to clarify that there was noney for
t he school districts for mnimal participation in YRBS.

SENATOR DAVIS replied that it was necessary for 60 percent
participation, as that threshold determined that organizations
did receive noney. She pointed out the inportance of the data.

4:05: 07 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER noted that sonme testinony reflected concern with
sharing private famly information. He said that the question
was not about the value of the data, but that passive perm ssion
was the default position for the sharing of private information.
He stated that the data was good, but he expressed his concern
for the | essening of privacy.

4:07:31 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 11, 2010



SENATOR DAVIS, in response, enphasized that SB 101 did not
| essen privacy. She stated that the perm ssion letter would be
mai | ed, not sent hone with the student. She said this was not
the only survey given in the schools. She enphasized that both
the parent and the student had the right to deny participation
She stated her support for parental rights. She decl ared that
there were other obligations, as well.

4:09: 30 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER offered his belief that privacy was the main
issue with the bill

4:09: 50 PM
REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON asked why the parental consent slip
signed during school registration was not sufficient in
Anchor age.
4:10: 15 PM

MR. OBERMEYER, in response, offered his belief that this
permssion slip was offered in August and that the anonynous
surveys required two week's noti ce. He pointed out that SB 101
included a long notification process. He noted that the issue
was both | egal and procedural.

4:12:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON asked if there were federa
requi renents regarding notification tine.

SENATOR DAVIS replied that this referenced state I|aw, not
federal |aw

MR. OBERMEYER said that the process was already a state |law, and
that SB 101 was asking to all ow non-response as consent for this
survey.

4:13: 07 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked why the «current system of
perm ssion during school enrollnent was not acceptabl e.

4:13:59 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 11, 2010



SENATOR DAVI S, in response to Representative T. WIson
explained that there had been insufficient returns. She
reiterated that SB 101 woul d not take away parental rights.

4:15: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES recal l ed that parents were encouraged, but
not required, to show up at registration

4:15:43 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked if there was evidence that receipt of
federal noney had been hindered because of the current |aw.

4:16: 13 PM

SENATOR DAVIS said that she was nore concerned wth collecting
t he survey data than about receiving the noney.

4:16:51 PM

CO-CHAIR HERRON referred to the information in the comittee
packets.

4:17:14 PM

RYAN KAUFFMAN said that he was the local coordinator for the
YRBS survey in the Sitka School District. He opined that a high
response rate gave a clearer picture for the necessary services.
He pointed out that an incorrect distribution of service funding
was equivalent to a |oss of revenue. He rem nded the commttee
that the YRBS was anonynous, which was the highest priority. He
recol l ected that twenty percent did not respond, ten percent of
students were absent or travelling, and eight percent had opted
out. He said that the passage of SB 101 would translate to the
saving of many man-hours and dollars necessary to collect the
perm ssi on. He offered his belief that signatures had to be
collected two weeks prior to the survey. He stated that many
parents did not return paperwork, even at the beginning of the
school year. He pointed out that nobst parents were supportive.

4:21:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if any federal noney was tied to the
percent age of surveys returned.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 11, 2010



CO-CHAIR HERRON confirmed that M. Omen was better suited to
answer that.

4:22:35 PM

MR. KAUFFMAN, in response to Representative Holnes, said that
parents were not required to show up at registration.

4:23: 05 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked how children were registered at
t he school

MR.  KAUFFMAN opined that students were re-enrolled from the
prior year.

4:23:52 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON offered her belief that the |aw stated
that at |east two week's notice be given prior to the survey, so
that the perm ssion could have been collected at the beginning
of the school year. She asked if this would have made things
easi er.

MR. KAUFFMAN replied that school registration was a very
difficult and busy tine, and it would be a difficult tine to
organi ze a | arge survey.

4:24:43 PM

COCHAIR KELLER clarified that AS 14.03.110(b) allowed for
anonynous survey permssion to be obtained annually, and was
valid until the subsequent year

4:25:40 PM

JIM M NNERY, President, Alaska Famly Council, declared that
they had just finished another statew de parental notification
canpai gn. He said that SB 101 wunderm nes parental rights
because it places the burden on the parent to say no. He
guestioned the content and the wusefulness of the data. He
opined that it was difficult enough for parents to shelter their
chi | dren. He suggested that school districts experiencing
problenms with collecting enough perm ssion should speak wth
ot her school districts which have been successful. He stressed
that parent's rights were being usurped. He encouraged

opposition to SB 101.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 11, 2010



4:29:52 PM

EM LY NENON, Alaska Government Relations Director, Anerican
Cancer Society Cancer Action Network (ACS CAN), testified that
after watching this issue for many years, SB 101 maintains and
strengthens parental notification provisions, "while inproving
the opportunities to better serve our youth."” She spoke in
support of SB 101.

4:30:42 PM

MARY FRANCI S, Executive Director, Al aska Council of School
Adm ni strators, said that school admnistrators believed that
the information was very inportant, and could be used for grant
pur poses. She stated that it was about the data, not any
[imtation on parental rights. She stated support for SB 101.

4:31: 53 PM

PAULA EASLEY, Trustee, Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority,
reported t hat t he trustees supported al | owi ng st udent
participation in the YRBS, wunless the parent or guardian
objected in witing. She stressed that students had to also be
free to determine their own level of participation. She pointed
out that the data ensured for Al aska's health, safety, and
prevention prograns to be evidence based and properly targeted.
She reported that one parent had stated "parents absolutely
needed to be aware of other teenager's behaviors and concerns to

hel p them better protect their own children's interests.” She
referred to the DHSS scorecard which conpared national and
Al aska data on issues inpacting Trust beneficiaries. She
expressed the need for accurate and current information. She

stated that as a nother, a grandnother, and a conservative, she
was a very strong advocate for the protection of privacy rights,
but she did not believe SB 101 violated these rights. She
stated her support for SB 101.

4:34: 35 PM

ANNI E DOUGHERTY, Teacher, shared that she had been a teacher in
rural and urban schools, and was famliar with the difficulties.
She stressed that it was critical to retain active parental
per m ssi on. She declared that the role as educators was to
del i ver education, not surveys. She agreed that the data was
important, but it was necessary to maintain respect for the
parents. She expressed concern for |osing students and student

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- March 11, 2010



funding to private or home schools because of parenta

di ssati sfaction. She opined that SB 101 would create nore
parental distrust. She enphasized the need for parenta
participation for student success. She suggested alternate

nmet hods for attaining parental perm ssion. She pointed out that
children were taught to wait for permssion, and not to assune
perm ssion when there was not a response. She suggested a query
to parents for their response to SB 101.

4:41:46 PM

MONI CA GROSS, Doctor, said that she was a parent of four
teenagers, and that she supported SB 101. She offered her
belief that SB 101 supported famlies and parents, as it was so
i mportant for parents to know what was going on with teens. She
reiterated that the survey was confidential and that it provided
dat a about teenagers.

4:43: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON stated that the data was for Al aska and
"not gonna get what the kids, my kids, hang out with, you don't
get that kind of data." She expressed concern for parental
awar eness. She offered her belief that it was nore inportant to
test the [school] prograns before they are funded, instead of
"how a teenager might check their activity on drugs or suicide."
She opined that there was too nuch focus on the data and not the
focus on whet her the prograns were working.

4:44: 09 PM

DR. GRCSS replied that the "world of teens is rapidly changing
all the tinme." She directed attention to the prior year problem
wWith prescription drug abuse in Juneau, and she stated that the
survey offered community data, as well.

4:44:52 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked about the survey revealing a
probl em wi th prescription drugs.

4:45:10 PM

DR. GROSS expressed the need for constant data updates as the
teen world was rapidly evol ving.

4:45: 29 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- March 11, 2010



CO CHAI R KELLER acknow edged the need, and the difficulty, for
parents to get the necessary information. He opined that
parents would be better inforned with active perm ssion.

4:46: 20 PM

DR. CGROSS agreed that in a perfect world, parents would give
active permssion, but she lanented that often children |ose
paper wor k. She pointed out that not many parents even go to
parent teacher conferences. She said that kids now assert nore
i ndependence, and parents are less involved. She said that if a
parent was opposed, they <could sign a statement of non-
participation. She supported passive perm ssion.

4:47:15 PM

PATTY OWEN, State YRBS Survey Coordinator, Division of Public
Heal th, Departnment of Health and Social Services, said that she
was avail able for questions to the topics discussed.

4:48: 15 PM
CO- CHAI R HERRON asked for her comrents.
4: 48: 30 PM

M5. OWNEN said that the process for collecting perm ssion forns
was different in each district, wth varying success. She
explained that districts did not always have the perm ssion on
file, and as the law required two weeks' notice, parents were
contacted again for permssion for the YRBS. She clarified that
this was both YRBS protocol and the law. She relayed that there
was not any quantifiable loss to federal funding from | ack of
YRBS data, but that the loss of federal grants for health and
education prograns was quantifiabl e.

M5. OVEN relayed that CDC has predicted a 50 percent decrease of
student response with the request for active parental consent,
unl ess extraordinary neasures were taken. She appl auded the
efforts by school districts to incentivize for the return of the
perm ssion slips. She said that lack of return for perm ssion

and sickness on the day of the YRBS, jeopardized the response
rate.

4:51:35 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 20- March 11, 2010



CO CHAI R HERRON cl osed public testinony.
4:52: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, |abeled 26-
LS0524\ A. 2 M schel, 2/17/10, which read:

Page 2, lines 23 - 24:

Del ete "guardi an notice of the survey”

Insert "legal guardian notice of the survey as
provi ded under (d) of this section at |east two weeks
before the survey is adm ni stered"

4:52: 08 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON obj ected for di scussion

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that the construction change
would include the student's legal guardian and would require
inclusion of all eight of the requirements in AS 14.03.110(d) to
be net.

4:53: 33 PM

SENATOR DAVI S said that she had no objection to Anendnent 1.

4:53: 44 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked how there could be verification
that every parent had been notifi ed.

4:54:15 PM

SENATOR DAVI S said that she could not answer that.

4:54: 37 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said that, currently, permssion was
needed to be given for the YRBS. She opined that a change in
the current system could not guarantee that parents would even

know about the YRBS.

4:55:58 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -21- March 11, 2010



SENATOR DAVI S expressed her assunption that the procedure would
be followed and the permission slips would be nmailed two weeks
prior.

4:56: 57 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if a better solution would be to
mai | them out right now.

4:57:12 PM

SENATOR DAVIS said that she did not know what procedure each
district was currently follow ng.

4:57:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA reported that Alaska lead the nation in
abuses to children. She opined that the YRBS coul d address sone
of these abuses. She offered her belief that the parents who
were staying in contact were the parents who would be returning
the forns, regardless of the decision to participate or not.
She suggested that the parents who did not want their children
to take the survey were the same ones who would be protected by
the testing.

5:00: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that the only issue was for parents
not responding and not participating in their children's |ives.
He offered as an exanple the Challenge Program of the Al aska
Mlitary Youth Acadeny, which wanted to allow the personal
contact information for drop outs to be shared on an opt out
basis. He offered his belief that the anmendnment would allow for
the protection of privacy for the YRBS, and that this would be
the only survey allowing for students to participate without a
specific parental approval.

5:02:39 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER said that, currently, a significant nunber of
parents were saying no to participation in the YRBS, yet the
data was still being collected. He offered his belief that the
bill abrogates the fundanmental, inherent, parent rights.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON pointed out that it was assuned that

parents had received the notice for the YRBS. She said that
financial |oss was not the issue. She offered her belief that

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -22- March 11, 2010



the YRBS should be the survey that npbst necessitated an active
parental consent. She opined that the YRBS was very personal
She expressed the necessity for parents to actively give
perm ssi on.

5:06: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN offered his agreenent with the comments of
Co-Chair Keller and Representative T. WIson. He appl auded the
survey intent, but he expressed his dislike for the survey
guesti ons. He noted that everyone wanted to stop inappropriate
behavior. He expressed concern for the unintended consequences,
and he declared that SB 101 took away parental rights. He
declared that it was necessary for [active] permssion to be
granted by the parents for participation in the YRBS.

5:08: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report SB 101, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON and CO CHAI R KELLER obj ect ed.

5:09: 11 PM

CO- CHAIR KELLER comented that the nobney spent to encourage
parental participation for the YRBS was also instrunental for
encour agenment and engagenent to overall parental participation
5:11: 01 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Seaton, G ssna,
Hol res, and Herron voted in favor of SB101, as anended.
Representatives T. WIson, Lynn, and Keller voted against it.

Therefore, HCSSB 101(HSS) was reported fromthe House Health and
Soci al Services Standing Conmmttee by a vote of 4-3.

5:11:59 PM
ADJ OQURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 5:11 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 23- March 11, 2010



